
 

 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2014–02 

REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 20, 2014 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

PRELIMINARY MEETING 

6:15 P.M. Work Session with Alaska Permanent Capital Management 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk 
(*).  Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council 
Member so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the 
General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 1 of 56



 

Agenda No. 2014–02 JANUARY 20, 2014 Page 2 of 4 

 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will Hear 
Interested Citizens Concerned with the Following Application for a New 
Liquor License and Restaurant Designation Permit.  Public Testimony will 
be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 Type: Restaurant/Eating Place 
 DBA: Friar Tuck’s Hoagie House, License #5270 
 Licensee/Applicant: Stafford Roach & Joshua Roach 
 Location: 427 Merhar Avenue, Unit #2, Fairbanks, AK 
 

b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will Hear 
Interested Citizens Concerned with the Following Application for a New 
Liquor License and Restaurant Designation Permit.  Public Testimony will 
be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 Type: Restaurant/Eating Place 
 DBA: Fushimi Japanese Restaurant, License #5266 
 Licensee/Applicant: Fushimi LLC 
 Location: 607 Old Steese Hwy, Fairbanks, AK 
 

c) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the following Liquor License 
Applications for renewal.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to five 
(5) minutes.   

Lic # Establishment Name License Type Premise Location Owner Name 

54 
American Legion Post 
#11 

Club 129 1st Avenue 
Dorman H Baker Post 
#11 

252 Club Alaskan 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
901 Old Steese 
Hwy 

Jerwater Inc. 

710 Mecca Bar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
549 2nd Ave JRB Inc. 

1639 Alaska Salmon Bake 
Restaurant/Eating 
Place-Seasonal 

2300 Airport Way Malemute Inc. 

3969 
Boomtown Grill and 
Bar 

Beverage 
Dispensary 

537 Gaffney Road, 
Ste. #1 

JSR Inc. 

3997 
BPO Elks Lodge 
#1551 

Club 1003 Pioneer Road 
BPO Elks Lodge 
#1551 

4232 Kodiak Jack's 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
537 Gaffney JSR Inc. 

4247 Brewster's 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
3578 Airport Way 

Restaurant Concepts 
LLC 

4395 Boston's 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
1243 Old Steese 
Hwy 

Goethe LLC 

4819 The Antler Room 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
1003 Pioneer Rd 
#A 

The Antler Room Inc. 

4846 
Wal-Mart Supercenter 
#2722 

Package Store 
537 Johansen 
Expressway 

Wal-Mart Stores Inc. 

4941 
Seoul Gate 
Restaurant 

Restaurant/Eating 
Place 

958 Cowles Street Chong Pak 

 
  

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 2 of 56



 

Agenda No. 2014–02 JANUARY 20, 2014 Page 3 of 4 

 
d) The Fairbanks City Council will convene as a Board of Adjustment to 

consider scheduling the appeal, and possible appointment of, a hearing 
officer in the matter of the following decision of the Fairbanks North Star 
Borough Planning Commission: 

 
 A request by Kal Kennedy for an additional lot size variance to the 

Multiple-Family Residential zone (MF) minimum lot size 
requirement of 90,000 square feet to allow for a 69,606 square foot 
lot on Lots 1A, 1B & 1C, Block 04 of Executive Park Subdivision.   

 
e) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the following Appeal of Denied 
Application for new Chauffeur License.  Public Testimony will be taken 
and limited to five (5) minutes: 

  Applicant:  Carey C. Noble 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 a) Resolution No. 4606 – A Resolution Adding a Capital Request Project to 
the City’s Priorities for the State 2014-15 Fiscal Year.  Introduced by 
Mayor Eberhart.   

 
*b) Resolution No. 4607 – A Resolution Accepting Agreements for Mutual Aid 

in Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services.  Introduced by Mayor 
Eberhart.   

 
*c) Resolution No. 4608 – A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Negotiate 

Mutual Aid and Cooperative Agreements for Fire Aid.  Introduced by 
Mayor Eberhart.   

 
*d) Resolution No. 4609 – A Resolution Recognizing a Day of Service in 

Honor of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  Introduced by Mayor Eberhart.   
 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 3 of 56



 

Agenda No. 2014–02 JANUARY 20, 2014 Page 4 of 4 

 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2013 
 
*b) Appointment to the Factfinding Commission 
 
*c) Recommendation for appointment to the FNSB Planning Commission 

 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 a) Labor Negotiations:  IBEW, PSEA, and FFU 
 
 b) Gavora Inc., vs. City of Fairbanks 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 4 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 5 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 6 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 7 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 8 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 9 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 10 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 11 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 12 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 13 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 14 of 56



18.54.070 Appeals.

A. Initiation of Appeal. Decisions may be appealed to the board of adjustment or a hearing offcer by:

1. An applicant for a conditional use or variance;

2. Any governmental agency or unit;

3. Any person aggrieved by a decision or determination made by the director of the department of community planning in the
 enforcement of this title, or by a decision of the planning commission concerning a request for conditional use or variance. To
 be considered a “person aggrieved,” the person must present proof of the adverse effect the decision has or could have on
 the use, enjoyment, or value of his own property. The decision appealed from must personally affect a matter in which the
 person has a specifc interest or property right in a way different from that of the general public. A request for variance from
 the terms of the land use regulations may be appealed when literal enforcement would deprive a property owner of rights
 commonly enjoyed by other properties in the district.

B. Appellees.

1. In the event a decision is appealed as provided in subsection (A) of this section, an appellee brief may be fled as provided
 in subsection (F)(2) of this section by:

a. The party in whose favor the lower administrative body’s decision was rendered;

b. Any borough agency;

c. Any person who would be aggrieved if the decision of the lower administrative body were reversed.

2. Appellees who wish to be notifed by the clerk’s offce of the date the record is available and of the date the appellant’s brief
 is fled must fle a notice of intent to fle a brief with the clerk’s offce on a form prescribed by the borough clerk, within 20 days
 after the decision of the lower administrative body from which the appeal is taken.

C. Notice of Appeal. An appeal must be perfected no later than 15 days after the decision of the administrative body from which the
 appeal is taken. The appeal is perfected by the fling of a notice of appeal, appeal fee and cost bond in accordance with this
 subsection.

1. The notice of appeal must be fled with the borough clerk on a form prescribed by the borough clerk and must contain
 detailed and specifc allegations of error.

2. The appellant shall pay a nonrefundable appeal fee of $75.00. In addition, the appellant shall fle a cost bond of $200.00.
 Following completion of the record, the appellant shall pay the actual cost of the record. However, should the decision of the
 lower body be reversed in whole or in part, the cost bond shall be refunded in full.

3. An untimely notice of appeal or a notice of appeal which does not conform with the requirements of this subsection shall be
 denied. No further proceedings shall be made on a defective notice of appeal unless the defect is corrected within the period
 provided for an appeal.

D. New Evidence – Changed Circumstances. Appeals alleging new evidence or changed circumstances shall not be heard by the
 board of adjustment or hearing offcer but shall be remanded forthwith by the clerk to the lower administrative body, which shall
 determine whether to rehear the matter.

E. Preparation of Record.

1. Upon timely perfection of an appeal, the borough clerk shall prepare an appeal record. The record shall contain:

a. A verbatim transcript of any proceedings before the administrative body from which the appeal has been taken

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 15 of 56

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.172
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.179
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.172
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.179
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.172
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.179
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.172
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
mailto:?body=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.codepublishing.com%2Fak%2Ffairbanksnorthstarborough%2F%3Ffairbanksnsb18%2FFairbanksNSB1854.html%2318.54.070&subject=18.54.070%20Appeals.


 prepared in accordance with subsection (E)(2) of this section;

b. Copies of all documentary evidence, memoranda and exhibits, correspondence and other written material submitted to
 the administrative body prior to the decision from which the appeal is taken;

c. A copy of the written decision of the administrative body, including its fndings and conclusions.

2. The appellant shall arrange for the preparation of the transcript by a court reporter and shall pay the cost of such
 preparation. The appellant shall fle this transcript with the borough clerk. If the appellant fails to fle the transcript within 30
 days of the fling of the notice of appeal, the appeal shall be automatically denied.

3. Upon completion of the record, the clerk shall notify the appellant by certifed mail of the cost of its preparation. If the
 appellant fails to pay the costs within seven days of receiving the notice, the appeal shall be automatically denied. Upon
 timely payment of costs, the clerk shall, by certifed mail, serve a copy of the record on the appellant. The clerk shall also
 notify by certifed mail the appellees who have fled a notice of intent to fle a brief that the record is available for pickup and
 the date the record was mailed to the appellant. Upon request, the clerk shall provide a copy of the record to an appellee or
 the public.

F. Written Argument.

1. Brief of the Appellant. The appellant may fle a written brief of points and authorities in support of those allegations of error
 specifed in the notice of appeal with the clerk’s offce not later than 15 days after mailing of the appeal record. The clerk shall
 deliver a copy of the appellant’s brief to the borough staff assigned responsibility for the appeal. The clerk shall also notify by
 certifed mail those appellees who have fled a notice of intent to fle a brief that the appellant’s brief is available for pickup.
 Upon request, the clerk shall provide a copy of the appellant’s brief to appellees.

2. Brief of Appellee. The borough staff shall prepare and submit to the clerk a written reply to the notice of appeal and any
 brief in support thereof no later than 30 days after mailing of the appeal record. An appellee who has fled a notice of intent to
 fle brief may also fle with the clerk’s offce a written reply to the notice of points on appeal and any brief in support thereof no
 later than 30 days after the mailing of the appeal record. The clerk shall notify the appellant by certifed mail that appellee
 briefs have been fled.

3. Reply Brief. An appellant may fle a written reply brief to the appellee briefs no later than 10 days after mailing of notice that
 the appellee briefs have been fled.

4. Form of Briefs. All briefs shall be typewritten on eight and one-half by 11-inch pages. The text of the brief shall be double-
spaced other than quotations from the record, case law, or other applicable law or exhibits which cannot be retyped on eight
 and one-half by 11-inch pages. The brief of the appellant is limited to 25 pages exclusive of exhibits. The brief of appellee is
 limited to 25 pages exclusive of exhibits. The reply brief is limited to 10 pages exclusive of exhibits. The clerk shall not accept
 a brief unless it is in the form prescribed by this subsection.

5. Untimely Briefs. If a brief is not fled within the time prescribed by this section, the clerk shall notify the board of adjustment
 or hearing offcer that the brief was fled late. The board or hearing offcer shall determine whether to accept a late brief and
 whether to allow additional time for any qualifed opposing party to fle its brief.

G. Appeal Packet – Notice of Hearing. Following the time set for the receipt of written argument from the appellant, appellee and
 the borough staff, the clerk shall prepare and distribute to the board members or hearing offcer an appeal packet containing only
 the notice of appeal, the appeal record and any briefs fled in accordance with subsection (F) of this section. Following distribution
 of the packets, a date shall be set for consideration of the appeal. Notice of consideration on the appeal shall be published in a
 newspaper of general circulation and shall be served by mail on the appellant and those appellees who have submitted briefs.
 Appeal packets shall be made available to the public upon demand.

H. Appeal Hearing. The meeting at which the board deliberates and decides an appeal shall be open to the public and a record of

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 16 of 56

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17


 the hearing shall be made. The board or hearing offcer shall not hear arguments nor take additional testimony or other evidence.
 Only the material contained in the appeal packet shall be considered.

I. Scope of Administrative Review.

1. An appeal shall be heard solely on the basis of the record established before the lower administrative body, the notice of
 appeal, appellant’s argument and the reply thereto.

2. The board of adjustment or hearing offcer may exercise its independent judgment on legal issues raised by the appellant.
 Legal issues as used in this subsection are those matters that relate to the interpretation or construction of ordinances or
 other provisions of law.

3. The board of adjustment or hearing offcer shall, unless it substitutes its independent judgment pursuant to subsection (I)(4)
 of this section, defer to the judgment of the lower administrative body regarding disputed issues or fndings of fact. Findings of
 fact adopted expressly or by necessary implication by the lower administrative body may be considered as true if they are
 supported in the record by substantial evidence. Substantial evidence for the purpose of this subsection means such relevant
 evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a conclusion. If the record affords a substantial basis of
 fact from which the fact in issue may be reasonably inferred, it shall be considered that the fact is supported by substantial
 evidence.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (I)(3) of this section, the board of adjustment, by an affrmative vote of two-
thirds of the fully constituted board, or the hearing offcer, may substitute its independent judgment for that of the lower
 administrative body on any disputed issues or fndings of fact. The judgment must be supported on the record by substantial
 evidence. For the purpose of this subsection, the fully constituted board of adjustment shall not include those members who
 do not participate in the appeal.

J. Decision.

1. The board of adjustment or hearing offcer may affrm or reverse the decision of the lower administrative body in whole or in
 part. It shall decide an appeal on the basis of the record on appeal and the briefs of the parties to the appeal, in accordance
 with the standards of subsection (I) of this section. A majority vote of the fully constituted board is required to reverse or
 modify the decision appealed from. For the purpose of this subsection, the fully constituted board shall not include those
 members who do not participate in the appeal. Where an appeal has been referred to a hearing offcer, the hearing offcer
 alone shall decide the appeal. A decision reversing or modifying the decision appealed from shall be in a form which fnally
 disposes of the case on appeal except where the case is remanded in accordance with subsection (K) of this section.

2. Every decision to affrm or reverse the decision of the lower administrative body shall be based upon fndings and
 conclusions adopted by the board or hearing offcer. Such fndings must be reasonably specifc so as to provide the
 community, and where appropriate, reviewing authorities, a clear and precise understanding of the reason for the decision.
 The board may seek the assistance of the borough attorney in the preparation of fndings.

K. Remedies.

1. Where the board of adjustment or hearing offcer reverses or modifes a decision of the lower administrative body in whole
 or in part, its decision shall fnally dispose of the matter on appeal, except that the case shall be remanded to the lower body
 where it determines either:

a. That there is insuffcient evidence in the record on an issue material to the decision of the case; or

b. That there has been a substantial procedural error which requires further public hearing.

2. A decision remanding a case shall describe any issue upon which further evidence should be taken, and shall set forth any
 further directions the board or hearing offcer deems appropriate for the guidance of the lower administrative body.

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 17 of 56

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.4
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17


3. The lower administrative body shall act on the case upon remand in accordance with the decision of the board of
 adjustment or hearing offcer in the minimum time allowed by the circumstances.

L. Special Rules of Procedure Applicable to Appeal Hearings Before the Board of Adjustment or Hearing Offcer.

1. Ex Parte Contacts Prohibited. Board members and the hearing offcer shall be impartial in all appeal matters, both in fact
 and in appearance. No board member or hearing offcer shall receive or otherwise engage in ex parte contacts with the
 appellant, other parties adversely affected by the appeal, or members of the public concerning the appeal or issues
 specifcally presented in the notice of appeal either before the appeal hearing or during any period of time the matter is
 subject to reconsideration.

2. Decisions of the board of adjustment or hearing offcer may be brought up for reconsideration or rehearing only if:

a. There was substantial procedural error in the original proceeding; or

b. The board or hearing offcer acted without jurisdiction in the original proceeding; or

c. The original decision was based upon fraud or misrepresentation.

The appellant or appellee may seek reconsideration or a rehearing by fling a request with the borough clerk, together with
 materials supporting one or more of the grounds stated above, within 15 days of the original decision. The board, by majority vote,
 or hearing offcer may schedule a rehearing only if it fnds the allegations to be correct. A rehearing shall be conducted in the same
 manner as original proceedings.

M. Judicial Review. Either the appellant or appellee may appeal the decision of the board of adjustment or hearing offcer to the
 superior court. Appeals shall be made in accordance with the Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure. (Ord. 94-003 § 2, 1994)

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 18 of 56

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/fairbanksnorthstarborough/cgi/defs.pl?def=18.06.010.17


AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 19 of 56



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

ARTICLE II. - COMMERCIAL TRANSPORT VEHICLE 

DIVISION 3. DRIVERS 

 Fairbanks, Alaska, Code of Ordinances Page 1 

Sec. 86-77. Application for chauffeur's license. 

(a) All applications for issuance or renewal of a chauffeur's license shall be made upon forms 
provided for this purpose by the city clerk, and the applications shall be submitted to the city 
clerk for review. The requirements to be fulfilled prior to issuance of a chauffeur's license shall 
be as follows:  

(1) The applicant must be 21 years of age or older and furnish proof if requested. 

(2) The applicant must be able to read, write and speak the English language. 

(3) The applicant must be in possession of a current Alaska State Driver's License. 

(4) The applicant must not have had a conviction within 24 months of: 

a. A moving traffic violation which results in suspension or revocation of the applicant's 
driver's license pursuant to AS 28.15.221 through 28.15.261;  

b. Reckless or negligent driving; 

c. Driving while license is limited, suspended or revoked; 

(5) The applicant must not have had his driver's license suspended or revoked within two years 
prior to the application date.  

(6) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the applicant must not have had a felony 
conviction within eight years or a misdemeanor conviction within four years of:  

a. Prostitution or promotion of prostitution; 

b. Any offense under AS Title 11, Chapter 71 Controlled Substances. 

c. Any felony or misdemeanor which includes as an element the use or threat of force upon a 
person;  

d. Burglary, felony larceny, fraud or embezzlement; 

e. Any sexual offense; 

f. Any homicide or assault involving operation of a motor vehicle; 

g. Two separate felony convictions of any type; 

h. Operation or driving a vehicle while intoxicated within five years or within eight years for a 
felony conviction;  

i. Refusal to submit to a chemical test as defined in AS 28.35.032 within five years or within 
eight years for a felony conviction.  

(7) The applicant must not be addicted to the use of intoxicants or narcotics. 

(8) The applicant must be of good moral character and repute. 

(9) The applicant must not be a sex offender or kidnapper subject to the registration requirements 
of AS Title 12, Chapter 63.  

(b) The city clerk's office shall procure an online criminal history report for each applicant, the cost of 
which will be included in the chauffeur license application fee in the city schedule of fees and 
charges for services.  

 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 20 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 21 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 22 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 23 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 24 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 25 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 26 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 27 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 28 of 56



Resolution No. 4606 
Page 1 of 2 

 Introduced by: Mayor Eberhart 
 Introduced:  January 20, 2014 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 4606 

  
A RESOLUTION ADDING A CAPITAL REQUEST PROJECT TO THE 

CITY’S PRIORITIES FOR THE STATE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s focus is on public safety, and an emergency service patrol is an 
essential component in providing safe transportation services to incapacitated persons and/or 
chronic inebriates; and 

 
WHEREAS, the services provided by the emergency service patrol frees police officer 

resources and increases the City’s ability to be responsive to public safety issues; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has identified, as an additional priority, the need to expand the 

emergency service patrol service beyond the City core area to include areas noted as being high 
response zones, and the public had the opportunity to speak to this Resolution at the January 20, 
2014, City Council meeting, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  
 

The legislative priorities of the City of Fairbanks are stated on the below list, in order of 
priority, with the following additional legislative capital request: 
 
  Emergency Service Patrol Funding $150,000 
 
 Projects previously voted on and approved by City Council under Resolution No. 4597, 
As Amended, are also on the below list.  The emergency service patrol funding request is hereby 
ranked as Number ____ on the priority list.   
 
____ Emergency Service Patrol Funding $150,000 

 
____ (1) Ambulance Replacement to Include Cardiac Emergency Equipment Upgrades $269,000 
____ (2) Microwave Communications:  Police-Fire-Public Works Departments $195,000 
____ (3) Heavy Duty Dump Trucks $275,000 
____ (4) Voice Over Internet Protocol (VoIP) $600,000 
____ (5) Continuity of Operations (COOP):  Data Back-Up and Server Room $1,400,000 
____ (6) Rickert Subdivision Street Reconstruction $3,570,750 
____ (7) Downtown Parking Garage Repairs $675,900 
 

Project requests total:  $7,135,650 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 29 of 56



Resolution No. 4606 
Page 2 of 2 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 20th day of January 2014. 
 
 
  _____________________________ 
  John Eberhart Mayor 
  City of Fairbanks 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:   
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC  Paul Ewers 
City Clerk  City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 30 of 56



Introduced By:  Mayor John Eberhart 
 Introduced:  January 20, 2014 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4607 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AGREEMENTS FOR MUTUAL AID IN 
FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks wishes to continue participating in agreements for 
mutual aid in fire protection and other emergencies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, local fire and EMS agencies have developed an agreement for mutual aid in 
fire protection and EMS through the Fairbanks North Star Borough,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council as follows:   
 
1.  That the Mayor is given authority to sign the attached “MUTUAL AID 

AGREEMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES” and “EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR 
BOROUGH AND ITS EMS CONTRACTORS AND ADJACENT ENTITIES PROVIDING 
LIKE SERVICES”; and  

  
2.  That the Mayor is given authority to sign any and all revised extensions of these 

agreements that may contain minor changes; and 
 
3.  That any major modifications to these agreements will be brought back to the Council 

for approval.   

  
Passed and Approved and Effective this 20th Day of January 2013. 

 
 
 __________________________ 
            John Eberhart, City Mayor 

AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 31 of 56



 

EMS Mutual Aid Agreement Page 1 
 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH AND ITS EMS 

CONTRACTORS, AND ADJACENT ENTITIES PROVIDING LIKE 
SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into effect, by the Fairbanks North Star 
Borough (FNSB) and its EMS contractors (Chena - Goldstream Fire and Rescue, Ester 
Volunteer Fire Department, North Star Volunteer Fire Department, Salcha Fire and Rescue, 
Steese Volunteer Fire Department, University Fire Department), and the City of Fairbanks, the 
City of North Pole, the City of Nenana, Fairbanks International Airport, US Army-Fort 
Wainwright Post, and US Air Force-Eielson AFB (referred to hereafter as “the adjacent 
entities”) who have duly executed this Agreement.  

NOW THEREFORE, 
 
WHEREAS, the Fairbanks North Star Borough and its contractors, and the adjacent entities 
recognize the necessity to cooperate and work together to provide for emergency medical service 
mutual aid and contingency assistance; and  
 
WHEREAS, all parties further recognize the need to provide for a legal means to go to the aid of 
another emergency medical service within or outside its service area, and to receive aid from 
another emergency medical service within or outside of its service area, during multiple casualty 
incidents or other situations as defined in this agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 7 AAC 26.285, a state-certified emergency medical service may enter 
into a mutual aid agreement with another state-certified emergency medical service by written 
agreement of the officers in charge of the services, and the Fairbanks North Star Borough 
Assembly authorized an emergency medical service mutual aid agreement through the passage 
of Resolution No. 2010-11 .  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks, the City of North Pole, and the City of Nenana have authorized 
an emergency service mutual aid agreement through the passage of resolutions or ordinances by 
their respective governing body. 
 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Definitions:  

As used herein:  
 a. “Requesting Entity,” shall mean the Entity requesting aid, and  
 b. “Responding Entity,” shall mean the Entity affording or responding to a call for aid.  
 
SECTION 2. Mutual Aid and Contingency Agreement  

 a. The FNSB, its contractors, and the adjacent entities mutually agree to provide 
emergency medical service (EMS) mutual aid and contingency service (move-ups) to each 
other when requested as personnel and equipment will allow. Each entity that is a party to this 
agreement agrees to maintain its state certification to provide EMS services.  

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 32 of 56



 

EMS Mutual Aid Agreement Page 2 
 

 b. Each entity represents that it owns and maintains the equipment and retains the 
personnel sufficient to provide services to its primary response area, and this Agreement is 
intended to provide for unexpected and emergency needs only. 
 
SECTION 3. Authority to Request to Provide Assistance  

 a. The authority to make requests for assistance or to provide aid under this agreement 
shall reside with the requesting entity’s command personnel or the command personnel’s 
designee. For purposes of this agreement, the “requesting entity” shall mean the incident 
commander or the incident commander’s designee asking for assistance and the “responding 
entity” shall mean an officer/supervisor or designee sending assistance. Any entity shall have the 
right to request assistance from the other entities subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  
  
 b. The Emergency Communications Center will dispatch mutual aid entities as requested 
by command personnel when necessary. All parties are empowered to set up automatic aid 
protocols in the Emergency Communications Center as needed.  
 
SECTION 4. Requesting Assistance  

An entity may request assistance from any other entity if confronted with an emergency situation 
at which the requesting entity has need for equipment or personnel in excess of that available at 
the requesting entity’s facilities.  It is further understood that this aid is mutual and that the 
requesting entity is initiating a response to the incident unless extenuating circumstances 
preclude such a response.
 
SECTION 5.  Responses to Request  

 a. Upon request, a responding entity, upon determination that an emergency exists 
and subject to the availability of personnel and equipment resources, shall dispatch EMS 
personnel and equipment to aid the requesting entity.  

 b. Upon receipt of a request as provided for in Section 4 of this Agreement, the 
Commanding Officer of the entity receiving the request (also known as the responding entity) 
shall immediately take the following action: 
 
 (1) Determine if the responding entity has equipment and personnel available to respond 
 to the request of the requesting entity and determine the type of the equipment and 
 number of personnel available. 
 
 (2) Determine what available equipment and what available personnel should be 
 dispatched in accordance with the plans and procedures established by the parties. 
 
 (3) In the event the requested equipment and personnel are available, then the 
 Commanding Officer shall dispatch such equipment and personnel to the scene of the 
 emergency with proper operating instructions. 
 
 (4) In the event the requested equipment or personnel are not available, then the 
 Commanding Officer shall immediately advise the requesting entity of such fact. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 33 of 56



 

EMS Mutual Aid Agreement Page 3 
 

SECTION 6. Personnel and Equipment Provided  

 a. The requesting entity shall include in its request for assistance the amount and type 
of equipment, and shall specify the location where the personnel and equipment are needed.  

 b. The final decision on the amount and type of equipment to be sent shall be solely that of 
the responding entity.   

 c. No entity shall make any claim whatsoever against another entity for refusal to 
send the requested personnel or equipment where such refusal is based on the judgment 
of the responding entity that such personnel and equipment are either not available or are 
needed to provide service in the entity’s response area.   

SECTION 7. Command and Control at the Emergency Scene  

 a. All entities have established NIMS Incident Command System (ICS) standard 
operating procedures or similar, and will implement them on all incidents involving mutual aid or 
contingency responses.  

 b. The responding entity’s personnel and equipment shall report to the incident 

commander or other appropriate officer of the requesting entity. The person in charge of the 
responding entity shall meet with the incident commander or appropriate officer of the 
requesting entity for a briefing and assignment.  
 
 c. The person in charge of the responding entity shall retain control of the responding 
entity’s personnel and equipment resources and shall direct them to meet the needs and tasks 
assigned by the incident commander or officer.  

 d. The responding entity’s personnel and equipment shall be released by the requesting 

entity when the services of the responding entity are no longer required or when the responding 
entity’s resources are needed in their primary response area. Responding entity personnel and 
equipment may withdraw from the EMS scene upon giving notice to the incident commander or 
appropriate officer that they are needed in the entity’s primary response area.  

 e. It is understood that the purpose of this section is to maintain order at the emergency 
scene and shall not be construed to establish an employer/employee relationship.

SECTION 8. Reporting and Record keeping  

All entities shall maintain records regarding the frequency of the use of this agreement and shall 
share said records upon request with the other parties to this agreement.  Each entity shall 
maintain individual patient care reports for all responses when generated.  

 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 34 of 56



 

EMS Mutual Aid Agreement Page 4 
 

SECTION 9. No Reimbursement for Costs  

No entity shall be required to reimburse any other entity for the cost of providing the services set 
forth in this Agreement for mutual aid services. Each entity shall pay its own costs (e.g. salaries, 
repairs, materials, compensation, insurance, etc.) for responding to requests for mutual aid or 
contingency response.  

SECTION 10. Fees for Ambulance Service  

Entities providing ambulance transport or other services normally billed for will be entitled to their 
normal fees for service and are responsible for their own billing, insurance filing and collection 
activity.   

SECTION 11. Liability  

 a. Each responding entity hereby waives all claims against each requesting entity for 
compensation for any property loss or damage and/or personal injury or death occurring as a 
consequence of the performance of this agreement.  

 b. A responding entity assumes all liability and/or cost of damage to its 
equipment and the injury or death of its personnel when responding or performing 
under this agreement.  
 
SECTION 12. Insurance  

Each entity shall procure and maintain such insurance as required by applicable federal and state law 
and as may be appropriate and reasonable to cover its staff, equipment, vehicles, and property, 
including but not limited to liability insurance, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, 
automobile liability, and property damage.  Entities may self-insure when appropriate.   

SECTION 13. Conflict Resolution  

From time to time, personnel from one entity or another may have some concerns or questions 
regarding this agreement or the working relationship of the parties. Should any such issues arise, 
they should be first dealt with by the entity’s chain of command to provide answers or resolution.  

SECTION 14. Term of Agreement  

This agreement shall be in full force and effect upon execution by all entities hereto. This agreement 
shall remain indefinitely, provided, however, that any entity may terminate its participation in this 
agreement, at any time and for any reason, by giving thirty days written notice to all parties to this 
agreement. The agreement will remain in full force with the remaining agencies.  The agreement 
may be amended by agreement of all of the entities if needed.  

 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 35 of 56



 

EMS Mutual Aid Agreement Page 5 
 

SECTION 15.  Counterparts 
 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, 
but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
  
Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB): __________________________ Date: _________ 
           Mayor 
 
 
 Chena Goldstream Fire&Rescue: __________________________ Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 Ester Vol. Fire Department:        __________________________ Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 North Star Vol. Fire Department: __________________________ Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 Salcha Fire & Rescue:  __________________________ Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 Steese Area Vol. Fire Dept.:        __________________________ Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 University of Alaska Fairbanks: __________________________ Date: _________ 
         Vice Chancellor 
 
Fairbanks International Airport  __________________________ Date: _________ 
         Airport Manager or delegate 
 
 
US Army-Fort Wainwright   __________________________ Date: _________ 
        Post Commander or delegate 
 
 
USAF-Eielson AFB    __________________________ Date: _________ 
        Base Commander or delegate 
 
 
City of Fairbanks:    __________________________ Date: _________ 
            Mayor 
 
 
City of North Pole:    __________________________ Date: _________ 
            Mayor 
 
 
City of Nenana:    __________________________ Date: _________ 
            Mayor 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 36 of 56



 

Fire Mutual Aid Agreement Page 1 
 

MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Fairbanks, City of North Pole, Fort 
Wainwright, Eielson Air Force Base (acting pursuant to the authority of 42 U.S.C. 1856a), 
Fairbanks International Airport, the Fairbanks North Star Borough fire service areas, Steese 
Volunteer Fire Department, Ester Volunteer Fire Department, Chena-Goldstream Fire & Rescue, 
North Star Volunteer Fire Department, University Fire Department, and Salcha Fire & Rescue.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto has an interest in fire protection; and 
 
WHEREAS, each of the parties owns and maintains equipment and retains personnel who are 
trained to provide various levels of service in order to provide fire protection services; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the event of a fire or other emergency, a party may need the assistance of another 
party to this Agreement to provide supplemental fire equipment and/or personnel support; and 
 
WHEREAS, each of the parties may have the necessary equipment and personnel available to 
enable it to provide such services to the other party to this Agreement in the event of such a fire, or 
other emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the equipment and personnel of each party are located in such a manner as to enable 
each party to render mutual assistance to the other; and 
 
WHEREAS, each of the parties to this Agreement has determined that it is in the best interests of 
each party to set forth guidelines for providing mutual assistance to each other in the case of a 
request for mutual aid; now, therefore, 
 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. PURPOSE  The stated purpose of the Mutual Aid Agreement is to provide mutual 

assistance to the parties for fire protection services outside the normal scope of what each 
party regularly provides. 

 
2. GENERAL TERMS  In order to be a participant in this agreement, a fire department must 

be registered with the State of Alaska Fire Marshal’s office.  The parties agree that the 
President of the Interior Fire Chief’s Association is designated as a coordinator for all 
parties to this Agreement.   

 
3. REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE  The Incident Commander of the party  at an emergency 

within the boundaries of that party’s geographical jurisdiction (also known as the 
Requesting Party) is authorized to request assistance from another party to this Agreement 
if confronted with an emergency situation at which the Requesting Party has need for 
equipment or personnel in excess of that available to the Requesting Party. 

 
4. RESPONSE TO REQUEST  Upon receipt of a request as provided for in Paragraph No. 3 

of this Agreement the Chief Officer of the party receiving the request (also known as the 
Responding Party) shall immediately take the following action: 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 37 of 56



 

Fire Mutual Aid Agreement Page 2 
 

 
A. Determine if the Responding Party has equipment and personnel available to 

respond to the request of the Requesting Party and determine the type of the 
equipment and number of personnel available. 

 
B. Determine what available equipment and what available personnel should be 

dispatched in accordance with the plans and procedures established by the parties. 
 
C. In the event the requested equipment and/or personnel are available, then the Chief 

Officer may dispatch such equipment and personnel to the scene of the emergency 
with proper operating instructions. 

 
D. In the event the requested equipment and/or personnel are not available, then the 

Chief Officer shall immediately advise the Requesting Party of such fact. 
 

5. COMMAND RESPONSIBILITY AT EMERGENCY SCENE   All parties agree to implement 
the National Incident Management System during mutual aid responses and to follow the 
area-wide accountability and area-wide communications plans.  The Incident Commander 
of the Requesting Party at the scene of the emergency to which the response is made, shall 
be in command of the operations under which the equipment and personnel sent by the 
Responding Party shall serve; provided, however, that the responding equipment and 
personnel shall be under the immediate supervision of the officer in charge of the 
responding apparatus.  If the Incident Commander specifically requests a senior officer of 
the Responding Party to assume command, then the Incident Commander shall not, by 
relinquishing command, be relieved of responsibility for the operation.  If an emergency in 
the Responding Party’s own jurisdiction occurs during a response to a request, the 
Responding Party must be released by the Incident Commander prior to departing the 
scene.  The Incident Commander will not unreasonably withhold consent to release a 
Responding Party in the event of an emergency. 

 
6. LIABILITY  Each responding entity hereby waives all claims against each requesting 

entity for compensation for any property loss or damage and/or personal injury or death 
occurring as a consequence of the performance of this agreement.  

 A responding entity assumes all liability and/or cost of damage to its equipment and the 
injury or death of its personnel when responding or performing under this agreement.  

 
7. POST RESPONSE RESPONSIBILITY  Upon completion of the rendering of assistance, 

such assistance and help as is necessary will be given by the parties to locate and return 
any items of equipment to the fire department owning said equipment.  All equipment and 
personnel used under the terms of this Agreement shall be returned to the Responding 
Party upon being released by the Requesting Party, or upon demand being made by the 
Responding Party for return of said equipment and personnel.  All entities shall maintain 
records regarding the frequency of the use of this agreement and shall share said records 
upon request with the other parties to this agreement.   

 
8. COMPENSATION  Each party agrees that it will not seek from the other party 

compensation for services rendered under this Agreement.  Each party hereto shall at all 
times be responsible to its own employees for the payment of wages and other 
compensation and for carrying worker’s compensation insurance upon said employees; and 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 38 of 56



 

Fire Mutual Aid Agreement Page 3 
 

each party shall be responsible for its own equipment and shall bear the risk of loss 
therefore, irrespective of whether or not said personnel and equipment are being used 
within the area of primary responsibility of that party.  Nothing in this section prevents a 
party from filing claims for firefighting costs and losses under 15 U.S.C. §2210 and 44 
C.F.R. Part 151. 

 
9. INSURANCE  Each party agrees to maintain adequate insurance coverage for its own 

equipment and personnel. 
 
10. PRE-INCIDENT PLANNING  The Chief Officers of the parties may, from time to time, 

mutually establish pre-incident plans which shall indicate the types of and locations of 
potential problems areas where emergency assistance may be needed, the type of 
equipment that should be dispatched under such circumstances, the number of personnel 
that should be dispatched under such circumstances and the training to be conducted to 
ensure efficient operations.  Such plans shall take into consideration the proper protection 
by the Responding Party of its own geographical jurisdiction.  The parties hereto agree to 
take such steps as are feasible to standardize equipment such as couplings, hose, and 
apparatus, so that said equipment can be fully utilized by either of the parties hereto. 

 
11. SHARED PURCHASING  This agreement creates no obligation for joint or cooperative 

acquiring, holding and/or disposal of real or personal property. 
 
12. ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE  There is not hereby created any separate or legal 

administrative entity by this agreement.  Each party hereto shall be responsible for and 
financing their separate obligations hereunder, including, if applicable, establishing and/or 
maintaining budgets therefore.  Further, the administration of this Agreement shall be 
performed by each entity separately through their Chief Officers. 

 
13. TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT  
 
 A.  This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless terminated.  A party desiring 

to terminate this Agreement shall serve written notice upon the other parties of its intention 
to terminate this Agreement.  Such notice shall be served not less than thirty calendar days 
prior to the termination date set forth in said written notice.  Said written notice shall 
automatically terminate the party’s participation in this Agreement on the date specified 
therein unless rescinded prior in writing. 

 
 B.  Review, re-negotiation or amendment of this agreement may be initiated at any time 

upon written request of any party hereto.  Amendments must be approved by all parties 
hereto, and will be attached to and become part of this Agreement only upon execution by 
all parties. 

 
14. AGREEMENT NOT EXCLUSIVE  This agreement is not intended to be exclusive as 

between parties hereto.  Each of the parties may, as that party deems necessary or 
expedient, enter into a separate Mutual Aid Agreement or Agreements with any other party 
or parties.  Entry into such separate Agreements shall not change any relationship or 
covenant herein contained unless the parties hereto mutually agree in writing to such 
change. 

 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 39 of 56



 

Fire Mutual Aid Agreement Page 4 
 

15. COUNTERPARTS   This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the 
same agreement.  

 
Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB): __________________________  Date: _________ 
            Mayor 
 
 
 Chena Goldstream Fire&Rescue: __________________________  Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 Ester Vol. Fire Department:             __________________________  Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 North Star Vol. Fire Department: __________________________  Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 Salcha Fire and Rescue  __________________________  Date: _________ 
           President 
 
 
 Steese Area Vol. Fire Dept.:             __________________________  Date: _________ 
            President 
 
 
 University of Alaska Fairbanks: __________________________  Date: _________ 
         Vice Chancellor 
 
 
City of Fairbanks:    __________________________  Date: _________ 
              Mayor 
 
 
City of North Pole:    __________________________  Date: _________ 
              Mayor 
 
 
US Army-Fort Wainwright   __________________________  Date: _________ 
         Post Commander or delegate 
 
 
USAF-Eielson AFB    __________________________  Date: _________ 
         Base Commander or delegate 
 
 
Fairbanks International Airport  __________________________  Date: _________ 
           Airport Manager or delegate 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 40 of 56



Introduced By:  Mayor John Eberhart 
 Introduced:  January 20, 2014 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4608 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO NEGOTIATE 
MUTUAL AID AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS FOR FIRE AID 

 
 WHEREAS, Alaska Statutes Section 18.70.150, Adoption of Mutual Fire Aid 
Agreements, authorizes cities, other incorporated entities, and other fire protection groups to 
make mutual aid agreements for fire protection purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Fire Department is currently operating under the authority granted 
by Resolution No. 3815, passed and approved on May 3, 1999; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 3815 is in need of updating to encompass updated mutual 
aid agreements and to acknowledge the provisions of Resolution No. 4507 that allowed the City 
to enter contracts for extraterritorial extension of fire suppression services, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council as follows:   
 
1.  That the Mayor is given authority to negotiate and prepare for submission to the City 

Council for approval any agreement that will provide mutual fire protection aid; and  
  
2.  That in the absence of such an agreement or in the absence of a contract for the 

extraterritorial extension of fire suppression services, no city fire equipment or personnel may 
respond to any alarm or fire outside of the City limits, except when a fire outside the City limits 
is endangering city property, government agencies at any level, hospitals, or schools, as shall be 
determined by the City Fire Chief or any person acting on his/her behalf. 

  
Passed and Approved and Effective this 20th Day of January 2013. 

 
 
 __________________________ 
            John Eberhart, City Mayor 

AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 41 of 56



Introduced By:  Mayor John Eberhart 
 Date:  January 20, 2014 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4609 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING A DAY OF SERVICE IN HONOR OF 
DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. devoted his life to the struggle for 

justice and equality; and  

 WHEREAS, the third Monday in January is recognized as a federal holiday and a 

holiday in all fifty states;  

 WHEREAS, all across the country, Dr. King’s legacy is honored with a national day of 

service; and  

 WHEREAS, by dedicating this day to service, we move closer to Dr. King’s vision of all 

Americans living and working together as one beloved community,  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS, that the third Monday in January is recognized as a day of service in 

honor of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  On this day, the Mayor is authorized to modify City 

operations so employees may use part of their on-duty day to attend approved in-service training 

on diversity or cultural awareness and/or engage in approved volunteer activities to help those in 

need.   

PASSED and APPROVED this 20th day of January 2014. 
 
 

___________________________ 
JOHN EBERHART, MAYOR 

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:   
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk PAUL J. EWERS, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 42 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 43 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 44 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 45 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 46 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 47 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 48 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 49 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 50 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 51 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 52 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 53 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 54 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 55 of 56



AGENDA PACKET - January 20, 2014 Page 56 of 56


	AGENDA - January 20, 2014 
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	New Liquor License-Friar Tuck's Hoagie House
	New Liquor License-Fushimi Japanese Restaurant
	Liquor License Renewals
	Board of Adjustment - Kennedy
	Chauffeur License Appeal

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4606
	Resolution No. 4607
	Resolution No. 4608
	Resolution No. 4609

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Hotel/Motel Minutes 12/13/2013
	Appointment to Factfinding Commission
	Recommendation for Appointment to FNSB Planning Commission




